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Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditers report of the
charitable company for the period from 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees’ report and a Directors’ report, including a strategic report, under company law,

The Trust operates as an Academy Trust for pupils aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area of Boughton Village

and the surrounding area, with a pupil capacity of 210 and with 196 pupils currently enrolled based on the
Autumn Census.

Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.

The Trustees are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable
company operates as Boughton Primary School Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year and to the date of the approval of this report and the
financial statements are included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member,

c. Trustees' indemnities

The Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased by the Academy Trust to cover the liability of the
Trustees arising from negligent acts, errors or commissions occurring whilst on- Academy Trust business. The
limit of this indemnity is £5,000,000.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL T RUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

d. Method of recruitment and appoiniment or election of Trustees

The Trust shall have the following Trustees, as set out in its Articles of Association and funding agreement:

e Up to 2 Governors who are appointed by the Members;

e A minimum of 2 Parent Governors who are elected by parents of registered pupiis at the Academy Trust,

» Any Staff Governors appointed by the Members (provided that the total number of Governors, including the
Head Teacher, who are employees of the Academy trust, does not exceed one third of the total number of
Governorsy);

« The Head Teacher who is treated for all purposes as being ex-officio Trustee;

s Any additional Governors, of appointed under Article 62, B2A or BBA,

e Any further Governors, if appointed under Article 63 or 68A;

e Upto1LA Govemnor, if appointed under Article 51.

The Academy Trust may also have any Co-opted Governor appointed under Article 5.

The number of Governors shall not pbe less than three but (unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution)
shall not be subject to a maximum.

Trustees are appointed for a 4 year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Head Teacher where
they have agreed to be appointed as a Trustee or where they are automatically appointed as a Trustee under the
Articles of Association Subject to remaining eligible to be 2 particular type of Trustee, any Trustee can be re-
appointed or re-elected.

When appointing new Trustees, the Board of Trustees will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of
existing Trustees in order io ensure the Board of Trustees has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the
Academy Trust's ongoing development.

In line with the Academy Trust Handbook, and the strong preference of the DfE, employees of the trust who are
Trustees will not be replaced on the board when their term of office ends.

e. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The ftraining and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience. Trusiees are
provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents they need
to undertake their role as Trustees. New trustees have the opportunity to undertake National Governor
Association fraining and Trustees receive regular National Governor Association updates. There is also
opportunity for governors to undertake training through West Northants Governor Services. As there are
normally only a few new Trustee appointments each year, induction tends to be done formally and is tailored
specifically to the individual. Trustees are made aware of specific courses offered by various external
organisations as appropriate, and are asked to do safeguarding training updates during their term of office as
well as when they first join the board.
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Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an ‘annual development plan and budget,
approving the annual statutory accounts, monitoring the Academy Trust by the use of budgets and other data,
and making the major decisions about the direction of the Academy Trust, capital expenditure and staff
appointments.

The Board of Trustees normally meet 5 times each year. The Board of Trustees establishes an overall
framework for the governance of the Academy Trust and determines membership, terms of reference and

and through direct reporting from the elected Chair of each Committee. The Board of Trustees may from time fo
time establish working groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.

There are currently three Committees of the Board of Trustees as follows:

* Resources
* Learning and Outcomes
e Audit and Risk

Each Committee has its own terms of reference detailing the responsibilities discharged to it.
The following décisions are reserved to the full Board of Trustees:

» to consider any proposals for changes to the status or constitution of the Academy Trust and its committee
sfructure;

» to appoint or remove the Chair and / or Vice Chair; and

* toappoint andfor consider the performance management of the Head tsacher.

The Trustees have devolved the day-fo-day management of the Academy Trust to the Senior Leadership Team
('SLT'), which is led by the Head teacher The SLT comprises the Head teacher and the School Business
Manager. The Head teacher is the Academy Trust's Accounting Officer and has overall responsibility for the day-
to-day financial management of the Academy Trust. The SLT implements the policies laid down by the Trustees
and reports back to them on these and the Academy Trust's overall performance.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trustees consider the Board of Trustees and the senior management team to comprise the key
management personnel of the Academy Trust in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating the
Academy Trust on a day-to-day basis. Al Trustees give of their time freely and no Trustee received any
remuneration in the current or prior year, other than those Trustees who are also employees of the Academy
Trust. Details of Trustees’ remuneration and expenses are disclosed in note 10 of the financial statements
respectively.

The pay of the senior management team is reviewed annually by the Resources Committee in line with the
Academy Trust's pay and remuneration policy and by reference to published pay scales for both teaching and
administrative support staff. The Head teacher makes a recommendation to the resources Committee regarding
employee’s pay and incremental rises for those eligible, based on performance during the previous year.
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Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

h. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Boughton School Association {Boughton PTA), which is a separate registered charity raises funds and uses
these to make donations and contributions to support particular projects and facilities of the Academy Trust and
its pupils.

The Academy Trust's Trustees do not consider the charity to be a connected charity as the Trustees of the
charity are not appointed by the Academy Trust or the Academy Trustees, are not directed by or accountable to
the Trustees of the Academy Trust and as the charity’s objects differ to and are wider than those of the Academy
Trust.

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The Academy objective is set out in its Articles of Association. In summary it is to establish, maintaih, manage
and develop a school offering a broad and balanced curriculum. It seeks to deliver this object through the
Academy which opened to students in September 2012 on premises leased from Northamptonshire County
Council previously occupied by the existing school but maintained by the local authority.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Academy has adopted a Funding Agreement approved by the
Secretary of State for education. The Funding Agreement specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting
students to the Academy, the catchment area from which students are drawn, and that the curriculum should
comply with the substance of the National Curriculum.

The key aims of the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2025 are summarised below:
it is the Academy Trust’s intention to provide a high quality of education for all its students, by:

« Promoting a broad, interesting, creative and differentiated curriculum that will help pupils to develop lively,
enquiring minds and to apply themselves to a wide variety of tasks and physical activities while gaining
knowledge and skills relevant to both their current and adult lives;

« Providing a happy, motivating and challenging school environment in which each child can build on their
strengths and show clear improvement through the love of learning, thus developing o their full potential;

« Promoting self-esteem, respect consideration and tolerance towards ofhers and values everyone for their
contribution to school life;

« Establishing a rich and rigorous environment within which all staff, governors, parents and our educational
community can work together for the benefit of the children; and

« Building on and extending community relationships and encouraging citizenship amongst the children.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Objectives and activities {continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The key priorities and activities of the Academy Trust for the year, which are contained in the Academy Trust's
Development Pian which is available from the Head Teacher, were as follows:

Priority 1(a}: Quality of Education — English - Reading & Phonics
Overall aim:
All pupils make accelerated progress, whatever their starting points, and achieve their full potential in reading.

Priority 1(b): Quality of Education — English - Spelling, Punctuation & Grammar
Overall aim: )
Al pupils make accelerated progress, whatever their starting points, and achieve their fuli potential in writing.

Priority 2: Quality of Education - Curriculum

Overall aim:

The curriculum is coherently sequenced and ambitious, with consistent application leading to all subjects being
embedded. Curriculum leaders are able to carry out their roles with knowledge & expertise.

Teachers’ subject knowledge enhances pupils’ “sticky” knowledge.

Priority 3: Behaviour and Attitudes

Overall aim:

High expectations and consistent application means that pupils’ behaviour shows exceptionally high levels of
respect, self-control, positive attitudes to learning; pupils’ make a positive contribution to the life of the school
and wider community

Priority 4: Personal Development
Overall aim:

The school goes beyond the expected, providing a wide range of opportunities to huriure, develop and stretch
talents and interests; development of pupils’ character is exemplary and is worthy of being shared with others.

c¢. Public benefit

The Academy Trust aims to advance for the public benefit education in Boughton and the surrounding area,
offering a broad curriculum and an excellent education environment for its pupils.

Academy Trust Governors are satisfied that the Academy complies with its duty in respect of public henefit, for
example the promotion of education in general.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Strategic Report
a. Key Performance Indicators

The Academy Trust uses a number of benchmarks or performance indicators to evaluate its financial
performance and drive budgetary control and monitoring.

A key financial performance indicator for the Trust is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet date and, in
particular, the amount of unrestricted reserves plus restricted income reserves at year end. At 31 August 2023,
the balance of the unrestricted and restricted income reserves was £223 000 (2024; £236,000). Further details
on the level of reserves held by the Academy Trust are set out in the Reserves Policy section below.

As the maijority of the Academy Trust's funding is based on pupil numbers, pupil numbers are also. a key
performance indictor. The pupil numbers at the most recent census (Autumn 2025) were 196, which is a
decrease of 3 pupils from the previous census (May 2025).

Staffing costs are another key performance indicator for the Academy Trust and the percentage of total staff
costs to total educational grant funding (being GAG funding plus other operating educational grants from the DfE
and / or Local Authority) for the year was 81.7% {2024: 80.6%), while the percentage of staff costs to total costs
(excluding depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was 79.9% (2024 75.3%).

b. Going concern

The recent increases in staff pay awards, continuing inflationary increases in many other areas of the Trust's
operations and the fall in pupil numbers in recent years have had are predicted to continue fo have significant
impact on future financial performance and position of the Trust. Whilst the Trust's budget forecasts looking
forward indicate the Trust has sufficient resources fo pay its debts as and when they fall due, the Trust's seniof
management team continue to review all areas of funding and expenditure and to identify and implement, in
consultation and agreement with the Trustees, actions to offset the impact of these unfunded cost increases and
reduced funding going forward. Rather than employing support staff on fixed-term or permanent contracts, the
Trust sources teaching assistants from reputable supply agencies. This allows quality assurance, as the calibre
of applicants is matched to the needs of the school, and also gives fiexibility in retention of staff; it allows us to
budget the cost to our needs year on year, without the risk of redundancies in the future, should funding reduce.

As such, after making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trusiees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fuiure. For this
reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details
regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies within
the financial statements.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REFORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025
Strategic Report (continued)

c. Promoting the Success of the Academy Trust

The Trustees have acted in the way which they consider, in good faith, promotes the success of the Academy
Trust for the benefit of its pupils and their parents, the Department for Education as principal funders and
regulators, its suppliers and local wider school community as a whole, and in doing so have given regard to
{(amongst other matters): ‘

Our educational business relationships and community

With a highly committed and dedicated workforce, the Academy Trust takes great pride in listening to what our
pupils, parents and local community want and continues to provide the level of education outcomes and results
that they have come to expect. The Academy Trust continues to evolve and to adapt to the ever-changing
educational environment, leading to the continued increase in the awareness of the Academy Trust's overal]
activities and educational performance.

As an educational focused charitable organisation, public benefit is also at the heart of all we do. The details in
the “Objectives and Activities” and “Achievements and Performance” section of the Trustees’ report above
provide full details of the impact of our activities and our achievements for the year.

With respect to suppliers, the Academy Trust's policy for the payment of suppliers is to agree to terms of
payment in advance in line with normal commercial practices and, provided a supplier performs in accordance
with the agreement, to abide by such terms.

The Academy Trust is also committed to contributing towards combating the threat of global warming by using
energy efficient measures to reduce CO2 emissions throughout its buildings, facilities and operations. The
particular initiatives underiaken during the period to improve energy efficiency have been to continue to give
parents the option for Parents’ Meetings via video conferencing technology to reduce the need to travel between
home/work and school. This technology is widely used for other meetings and online training. As in previous
years, and led by one pupil, a recycling project whereby crisp packets were collected, cleaned and repurposed
continued. The individuza!, at the end of the academic year donated £160 for the school.

Qur stakeholders

In additional to our pupils, parents, suppliers and wider local community, the Trustees also recognise the
Importance of their relationship with the Department for Education (DFE), as principal funder, regulator and
stakeholder. The Trustees are committed to the effective engagement with the DIE (and their representatives)
and recognise that its success depends on the Trustees and senior management’s ability to engage with them
effectively and to work with them constructively, taking into account their guidance and best practice initiatives,
whilst also working in line with the specific requirements of the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the
Academy Trust Handbook.

Our people

The Academy Trust’s key asset is its people. It employs over 20 staff, including agency workers, and it js only
through the combined effort of this workforce, together with our supporters and volunteers, that we can change
the lives of the children under our care. The Academy Trust encourages the involvement of all employees in
decision making processes that impact on them directly.

Our Members

The Trustees are committed to and openly engaged with our Members through dialogue with them, including an
Annual General Meeting. The Members are actively engaged in understanding our strategy and vision for the
future, our culture and ethos, our people and our educational performance and standards,
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 20625
Strategic Report (contfinued}

Maintaining a_reputation for high standards

The Academy Trust has been in existence for 13 years, and is commitied to continual improvement, which it
achieves in a number of ways, including improvement planning, review meetings, continual professional
development, lesson observations, performance management, self-evaluation, data analysis and action
planning. The Academy Trust also continually develops strategies to maintain and grow its pupil base, including
looking for new schools and academies to join the Trust, and further improve relationships with our suppliers.
The information in the “Achievements and Performance” section of the Trustees’ report above provide full details
of our achievements during the year and the standards of educational performance we have achieved for all our
stakeholders.

School leaders have recognised and discussed the engoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on aspects of
school improvement. These include, but are not limited to: the longer-term effects of the periods of partial
closure in 2020 and 2021; impacts on pupil attendance (illness and requests for term-time absence); delays in
assessing or diagnosing individual needs . These have inevitably affected pupil progress in both leamning and
social development in some cohorts. Robust action has been taken during the academic year 2024-2025,
including regular meetings with teams within West Northamptonshire Gouncil for support with attendance and
behaviour concemns, and robust policy development to ensure systematic approaches to managing attendance,
behaviour and individual needs.

Leaders and staff have taken a proactive approach towards pupil achievement and have maximised the
opportunities to support individuals, groups and classes through a range of methods, starting with high quality-
first teaching, followed by small group interventions and individual tuition.

d. Achievement and performance

The Academy Trust continues to evolve and to adapt to the ever-changing educational environment. The
Academy Trust is commitied to continual improvement, which is achieved in a number of ways, including
improvement planning, review meetings, continual professional development, lesson cbservations, performance
management, self evaluation, data analysis and action planning. The particular achievements and performance
of the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2025 were as follows:

Pupil Attainment
The three-year trend for the academy’s outcomes can be seen below. Attainment combined (reading, writing &
maths) is below national data for the end of KS2 (Y8). However, in reading and maths attainment is above

national. Writing data for this cohort has impacted the combined outcomes.

There is no longer a statutory requirement for end of KS1 tests, therefore we have collected internal data for
action planning, but without any need to publish this.

Phonics data for Y1 is higher thah 2024, but below national attainment; atthe end of Y2 it is Vabove national
outcomeas.

EYFS Good Level of Development (GLD) outcomes reflect the specific needs of several individuals within the

cohort, with children’s personal, social and emotional development significantly affecting the combined
outcomes. However, the overall attainment is significantly above 2024 outcomes, and in line with 2023.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Strategic Report (continued)

Our attainment outcomes are now starting the show the impact of the Covid19 pandemic, and the missed
learning as a result of periods of partial school closure. The Recovery Premium funding ended in 2022, and
academy trust staff have needed tfo be creative with managing interventions for groups of pupils in need of
support. The senior leadership team, teachers and support staff are all committed to ensuring that every child
achieves in line with their potential, whatever their starting points.

The fabie below shows the 3-year trend.

3 year trend

| 2025 2024 2023

comb | R W M comh | R W M combk | B W M

EY| “Tom e 7w Tew [T% e (7on o 65% | 81% | 73% | 77%
{comb=GID) :

YiFhonics | 7% ERL

Y2Phonics | 92% 50%

Y2 SATS N/A | NAA | NfA | N/A | A i WA | nja | 5%

Y6 5ATS 57% | 86% | 57% | 0% | 64% | 7% | 71% | 75% | 79% | &9% | o3 | 93%

Financial review

Governors continue to make it a priority to ensure that high standards have been maintained within the
framework of a budget that is sustainable. Key areas identified of financial planning during the year included:

. Retaining a sharp focus on teaching and leaming

. Planning for the long term, including succession planning

. Investing for quality and efficiency

. Developing a proactive response for future funding challenges
. Staff movement i.e. resignations, long term sickness

The majority of the Academy Trust's income is received from the Department for Education in the form of
recurring grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received during the year end 31
August 2025 and their expenditure are shown as restricted funds within the statements of Financial Activities.

For the year ended 31 August 2025, the Academy Trust's total income (excluding capital grants) was £1,101,000
(2024; £1,030,000) while the total expenditure (excluding depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges)
was £1,102,000 (2024: £1,077,000), resulting in & net operating deficit for the year of £1,000 (2024 deficit of
£47,000).

The balance of reserves at 31 August 2025, excluding the restricied fixed asset funds and LGPS liability fund,
was £223,000.

The net book value of fixed assets at 31 August 2025 were £1,640,000. The fixed assets held by the Academy

Trust are used exclusively for providing education and associated support services to the pupils of the Academy
Trust.
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Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Included within the Academy’s balance sheet at year end is a defined benefit pension scheme balance of £Nil
(2024: asset of £12,000}, which arises from the Local Government Pension Scheme ("L.GPS") that is atiributable
io the Academy. Whilst the actuary’s FRS102 valuation report at 31 August 2025 indicated an asset in the
scheme of £273,000, there is significant judgment needed by the Trustees in assessing whether the surplus
should be recognised as a pension asset or whether the surplus should be restricted to some level or in total. In
line with the asset ceiling review and calculations provided by the actuary, the pension asset has been reduced
to a £Nil balance in the financial statements. Further details regarding the LGPS balance at 31 August 2025 and
the basis on which this has been recognised in the financial statements are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

The key financial policies reviewed and adopted during the petiod included the School Finance Policy,
Accounting Policy, Tendering and Good Financial Practice and Reduction of Risk Summary, Reserves Policy,
Investment Policy and Charging Policy. In addition, there are also an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Bribery Policy, Conilicts
of Interest Policy (for staff, trustees and members) and policy guidelines for stafffgovernors on Gifts and
Hospitality. These policies establish the framework for the Academy Trust's financial management, including
financial responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, Head teacher, its committees and key personnel of the
academy, as well as the delegated authorities for spending.

a. Reserves policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Academy Trust annually. This review encompasses the nature of
the income and expenditure streams, restricted income streams, the need to match income with future
commitments and the nature of reserves. The Trustees also take into consideration the future plans of the
Academy Trust, the uncertainty over future funding and staff pay rises and other key risks identified during the
risk review.

The Trustees look to ensure that a prudent level of reserves is maintained, bearing in mind the recurrent
spending needs to ensure high quality provision. In deciding the level of reserves Trustees will take info account

the following:

e One month salary bill;

s The school's annual budget;

« The need for any large project spend such as facilities development or building condition needs;

» Any uncertainty, turbulence or expected reduction in funding arrangements, including the level of transitional

protection within the school funding and its expiry date;
s Anticipated funding over the next three years,
« A reduction in pupil numbers; and
« Any Local Government Pension Scheme deficit.

Operating reserves are considered to be those income reserves that are available to be used by the Academy
Trust for its normal operating activities and is generally represented by unrestricted income funds (excluding any
designated funds} and restricted income funds that are considered to be available for the general purposes of
the Academy Trust (such as GAG funds).

The reason for this reserves policy is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and
receipts of grant funding, to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent
maintenance, long term staff absences etc. and to provide sufficient financial resilience to offset continued
funding pressures in the sector.

The Academy Trust's current level of operating reserves at 31 August 2025 is £023.000 (2024: £224,000, which
is made up of restricted income reserves of £43,000 (2024: £67,000) and unrestricted funds of £180,000 (2024:
£157,000).
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Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Although the current leve! of operating reserves is above the target level identified, the Trustees expectation is
that these reserves will be utilised over the coming years to fund the ongoing development of the Academy
Trust, including the need fo retain key staff in light of the increasing cost pressures in future years and to address
the maintenance, increased energy costs and renewal of the building, the fabric of which is old, to ensure the
Academy's learning activities are not compromised.

The value of the restricted fixed asset fund at 31 August 2025 is £1,640,000 (2024: £1,677,000), which is
represented by the fixed assets that are used exclusively for providing education and associated support
services to the pupils of the Trust, and the balance of any unspent capital grants to be used on future capital
expenditure. These funds can only be realised by disposing of the associated tangible fixed assets or by utilising
the amounts of any unspent capital grants in line with the terms and conditions of those grants.

The pension reserve fund has a balance at 31 August 2025 of £Nil, which represents the balance in the LGPS at
the balance sheet date. As detailed earlier in this report, whilst the actuary’s FRS102 valuation report at 31
August 2025 indicated an asset in the scheme of £273,000, the pension asset has been reduced to a £Nil
balance in the financial statements. The effect of this asset position is that Academy Trust may be required to
make reduced pension contributions over the next 3 year funding period with the effect being that the surplus is
uitimately repaid over the next 20 year period. These reduced pension contributions will continue to be funded
from the Trust’s annual recurring income. In the event that the LGPS moves in an overall deficit position in the
future, the Trustees have noted however that the Government has provided a guarantee that in the event of an
Academy closure, any outstanding LGPS liabilities would be met by the Department for Education.

b. Investment policy

All funds surplus to immediate requirements are invested to optimal effect by the Academy Trust with the
objective of ensuring maximum retumn on assets invested but with minimal risk. On a daily basis this is achieved
by automatic fransfer of surplus funds to an overnight deposit account with the Academy Trust's principal
bankers. Where cash flow allows, sums in excess of £10,000 may be invested on deposit for extended periods
with the Academy Trust's principal bankers or other reputable financial institutions.

€. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed, especially in the
operational areas, such as teaching, health & safety, safeguarding and school trips, and in relation to the control
of finances and strategical development of the Trust. They have introduced systems, including operational
procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk and have agreed a Risk Management
Strategy and Risk Management Plan, which incorporates a Risk Register. The Risk Management Plan is
constantly reviewed in light of any new information and formally reviewed annually.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy Trust are as follows:
Educational

The continuing success of the Academy Trust is dependent on continuing to atiract pupil applicants in sufficient
numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards across all key stages. To mitigate this risk, the
Trustees ensure that pupil success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed, with corrective actions
embedded at an early stage, and that relationships and partnerships with parents, the local community and other
organisations and groups are maintained and are effective in producing a cohesive and supportive community.

Whilst there were no periods of partial closure during the past year, the ongoing impact of the pandemic has
been noticed within some cohorts, both in terms of academic attainment and social development. This has
become apparent not only with those children who were registered at school in 2020 and 2021, but with those
who would have attended nursery or pre-school settings at that time. However, the Academy Trust has
maintained a keen focus on the progress of every individual, and maximised this by working in close partnership
with parents for the benefit of each pupil.

Throughout the academic year, a safe, purposeful and happy learning environment was maintained.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Safeguarding and child protection

The Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of selection and
monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and discipline. The
Safeguarding Trustee meets with the Head teacher on a regular basis to review safeguarding practice within the

school.
Financial

The Academy Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the DFE (and Local
Authority). in the year, approximately 97% of the Academy Trust's operating income was ulimately Government
funded. Whilst this level is expected to continue, there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will
remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms, particularly in light
of continuing cost pressures facing the sector.

Continuing increases in employment costs, including unfunded pay increases and pension costs associated with
both the Teachers' Pension Scheme and the { ocal Government Pension Scheme, and premises costs, including
the significant impact of energy cost increases, will also continue to place significant pressure on the Academy
Trust’s financial position and its ability to deliver balance budgets in the fuiure.

The Trustees examine the financial health of the Academy Trust formally 5 times throughout the year, reviewing
performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of regular update reports at all full Trustees and
Finance and Resources Committee mestings.

At the balance sheet date, the Academy Trust had no significant liabilities arising from frade creditors or debtors
where there would be a significant effect on the Academy Trust's liquidity.

As detailed earlier in this report, the actuary’s FRS102 valuation report at 31 August 2025 indicated an asset in
the scheme of £273,000. The Trustees recognise that this position will change from year to year depending on
the various assumptions adopted by the actuaries when completing the FRS102 valuation reports. As such, the
LGPS could still present a significant potential liability to the Academy Trust in the future. However, as the
Trustees consider the Academy Trust is able fo meet its known annual contribution commitments for the
foreseeable future, the risk from this potential future liability is considered to be very low. The Trustees have
noted however that the Government has provided a guarantee that in the event of an Academy closure, any
outstanding LGPS liabilities would be met by the Department for Education.

Estates

Trustees look to ensure that the importance of health and safety of students, staff and visitors is considered a
top priority. Health and safety policies and procedures are in place, with independent reviews and support from
specialist external advisors.

Financial spending decisions are made by the Trust, for instance in investment in the school property, in order to
ensure the site condition is safe and fit for purpose.

The Trust has effective Health and Safety walk-rounds in place and the Trust's Resources Committee has
oversight of arrangements. It ensures health and safety is always a primary factor in its decision making,
including when determining the priority areas for which it wishes to submit bids to the DfE in respect of Condition
Improvement Fund (CIF) grant funding
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Staffing.

The success of the Academy Trust is reliant on the quality of its staff so the Trustees monitor and review policies
and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear
succession planning.

Teacher performance management cycles and processes, including the Head Teacher, were conducted
thoroughly, within set time parameters and with external scrutiny where required.

A particular challenge this year has been the unforeseeable amount of staff absences both short term and long
term along with staff resignations and the need for unforeseeable additional support across the school. Whilst
agency staff have been of excellent quality for both teaching and support staff cover, the costs have been high.
Recruitment and succession planning is integral to Trust's planning and the Head teacher continues to take a
personal lead in the recruitment and selection of all staff. The Trust has endeavoured to undertake high-guality
recruitment to all vacant posts during the period, whilst balancing the longerterm budgetary constraints and
ensuring it does not become over-staffed.

The board is always open to discussions about the future direction of the trust inciuding the consideration of
Jjeining a multi academy trust.

Failures in governance and/or management

The risk in this area arises from the potential failure to effectively manage the Academy Trust's finances, internal
controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns efc. The Trustees continue to review and
ensure appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks, which includes those relating to fraud and
mismanagement of funds.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds

The Academy Trust has engaged Charlotte Dennison as responsible officer (RO} / internal auditor to perform a
program of work aimed at checking and reviewing the financial systems and records as required by the
Academies Financial Handbook. She holds FMAAT qualifications whilst being employed at another primary
school in the county. She previously worked at West Northamptonshire School's Finance Team before WNC
ceased their Finance service to schools in the area. :

Cybercrime

We have an SLT Digital Lead in place who works in collaboration with the school's Computing Lead. An
audit/cyber risk assessment is in the process of being implemented and will be reviewed accordingly. Pupils
have undergone fraining in the past around their use of cyber technology and this is in the process of being
opened up to all stakeholders as part of The Cyber Plan. Various anti-malware and firewall protection is in place
with our IT providet having gained Cyber Essentials certification with GTIA Cybersecurity Trustmark in progress.
The school also uses multifactor authentication. Licences for digital technology are up to date with backups in
place. '
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Fundraising

The Academy Trust raises funds for specific projects that will enhance the learning experience and environment
for existing and future students, where funds cannot be accessed via existing channels such as government
education funding. Fundraising is primarily undertaken by staff or parents and no professional fundraisers or
commercial participators work with the Trust currently.

Fundraising is undertaken in line with the Fundraising Regulator's Code of Fundraising Practice and is monitored
by the ceniral finance function of the Trust. The Academy Trust is mindful of the requirement to protect the
public, particularly vulnerable people, from unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches or undue
pressure to donate. No complaints have been received in respect of fundraising activities and the general
complaints policy of the Trust would be applicable if so.

The Boughton School Assoclation (Boughton PTA), a group of parents, organised several fundraising events
during the academic year, including an annual Chrisimas Fayre, second-hand uniform sales during the year, the
sale of refreshments at various school events, pupil disco and Freeze-pop Fridays during the summer months.
In conjunction with staff, a one-day sponsored event was held during the spring term, to raise funds towards a
canopy to cover the Reception and Year 1 outdoor areas.

Plans for future periods

The Academy Trust's plans for future periods are shared within our School Sirategy Plan. There are three
strands:

strand 1: Teaching, Learning and Curricufum

. To enhance the effectiveness of leadership (SLT, curriculum leads and governing body). To ensure best
outcomes for all chiidren through offective communication, self-evaluation, strategic -planning, shared
accountability and monitoring; ensure effective induction and development of ECT.

e Broad/frich curriculum. Refine whole-school curriculum, continuing to ensure robust sequential progression
and assessment of skills. Teachers to ensure appropriate opportunities for extra curricular and cross
curricular activities and links.

« EYFS. Ensure all leaders (SLT, subject leaders and governors) understand the requirements of the new
EYFS framework. :

Strand 2; English

Ofsted priority: Leaders should ensure that pupils who need additional support to read receive precise support to

enable them {o become confident, fluent readers.

« Phonics and early reading. Work with the English Hub fo ensure best practice in the teaching of phonics and
early reading leading to optimum outcomes. Focus on embedding a keep-up rather than catch-up approach.

« Fluency. Continue to develop fluency by embedding pedagogy: choral, echo reading and aduit modelling.

e Writing. Use the writing framework to train, support and enhance the teaching of writing from Reception to
Year 6.

Strand 3: Inclusion, pastoral and well-being

» Inciusion. Introduce Provision Map to all staff and use this to plan effectively for pupils with additional needs.

» Pastoral. Continue to embed the statutoty guidance for attendance in order to reduce persistence
absenteeism and support families where barriers to attendance are present.

¢  Weli-being. Complete the Healthy Schools Award Bronze.

o Train staff in using Zones of Regulation to support pupil well-being and inclusion.

e Online Safety. Work with outside agencies to educate families about the risks associated with online
behaviour, including child-on-child abuse.
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Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
The Academy Trust and its Trustees do not act as Custodian Trustees of any other charity.
Disclosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and

. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought fo have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

The auditors, Cooper Parry Group Limited, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and will be
proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2008.

The Trustees' report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 28
November 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs K Wilson
Chair of Trustees
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Boughton Primary School Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Academy Trust Governance Guide.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head teacher, as Accounting Officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Boughton Primary School Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governancé

The information on governance included here supplements that information that is described in the Trustees'
report and in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during
the year ended 31 August 2025.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mrs M James 5 5
Mrs N Cullum 5 5
Mrs K Wilson 5 5
Mr J Morris 3 5
Mrs S Williams 5 5
Mrs C Mitchell 3 3
Mr A Mosdell 2 3
Mr J Hargreaves 3 3
Mr J O'Byrne 3 3

During the year ended 31 August 2025, the Board of Trustees reviewed the Academy Trust's governance
structure in order to evaluate its impact and effectiveness, and this included undertaking a skills audit. While the
Board of Trustees has a wide range of skills that contribute to the successful governance of the Trust, the skills
audit identified some gaps in specific skills and as a result, additional Trustees were recruited during the year to
further add to the effective governance of the Academy Trust. The board are still actively looking to recruit a
trustee with experience of audit as this is a gap which we have identified through our skills analysis.

The Board, and each sub-Committee, receive comprehensive information from the Trust's leadership team prior
to each meeting, including key performance indicator monitoring. This enables the Trustees to remain fully
appraised of the performance of the Trust in all areas of operations and to ‘drili down’ into areas of particular
interest so that meetings are focused at all times.

The responsibilities of and work undertaken by the sub-Committees are detailed further below. The minutes of
these sub-Committee meetings are provided to the full Board of Trustees and the Chairs of these sub-
Committees report to each full Board of Trusiee meeting on the key matters considered at their meetings and
the impact for consideration by the full Board of Trustees.

Trustees have also taken a proactive role in linking with individual academies to develop greater knowledge of
the impact of the Trust's sirategic direction and work of the central team through informal engagement with
school leaders, staff and the wider community.

A key focus of the Board of Trustees during the year was to consider what actions the board may need to
implement to ensure the longer term sustainability of the frust.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)
Governance reviews

The effectiveness of governance is reviewed annually. The board use a skills matrix to conduct an analysis of
existing skills and experience to determine where they may be gaps. We have conducted our most recent skills
audit in 2025 and recruitment has taken place specifically to support with gaps identified. Vhilst there is still a
gap in terms of an audit specialist we are actively attempting to recruit to this role.

Aithough the Board of Trustees met less than six fimes during the year, they have maintained effective financial
oversight and governance through the formal work undertaken by the Resources Committee and the Audit &
Risk Committee. These are sub-committees of the Board of Trustees and they met 5 and 3 times respectively
during the year.

The responsibilities of work undertaken by these sub-committees are detailed further below. The minutes of
these sub-committee meetings are provided to the full Board of Trustees and the Chairs of these sub-
committees report to each full Board of Trustee meeting on the key matters considered at their meetings and the
impact for congideration by the full Board of Trustees.

The Board of Trustees also commissioned an external review of governance during the year. The review was
underpinned by the Academy Trust Governance Guide published by the Department for Education and
specifically considered strategic governance, leadership and direction as well as the impact and effectiveness of
governance. The review identified a range of strengths in governance at the Academy Trust and recommended
some areas for further development which have now been incorporated into an action plan which is being
implemented by the Board of Trustees.

Conflicts of interest

The Academy Trust has a Conflicts of Interest policy in place, which is reviewed annually and is updated where
applicable by management and taken to the Resources Committee for approval. This policy is communicated to
all Members, Trustees, and employees of the Academy Trust at the start of each academic year.

In line with the policy, all Members, Trustees, and senior leadership team employees are required to complete a
declaration of any business or pecuniary interests on an annual basis or, in the case of individuals taking up
these roles during the year, at the point of taking up their role. A register of interests is then maintained by the
Academy Trust, which is reviewed at the start of each Board of Trustee meeting and also provided to Academy
Trust's finance team for monitoring in relation to any transactions with any organisations in which interests have
been declared. Any transactions with organisations in which any interests have been declared are reported to the
Board of Trustees in advance of the transactions, so that formal approval can be provided by the Board where
the transaction is considered appropriate and formal notification to the DFE can then be made, including where
relevant, seeking pre-approval.

Resources Committee

The Resources Committee is a sub-Committee of the Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to provide oversight,
guidance and assistance fo the Board of Trustees on all matters related to finance, resources, premises and
Health & Safety of the Academy Trust.

Aftendance at meetings of the Resources Committee during the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mrs M James
Mrs N Cullum
Mr J Morris

Mrs K Wilson

Mr J Hargreaves
Mr J O'Byrne

W wo ot e,
Wt
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Governance (continued)

The key issues dealt with by the Resources Committee during the year was the review of the Academy Trust's 3-
year financial forecasts and the actions required o address the impact of increased cost pressures expected
over this forecast period mainly around increasing staffing costs due fo unforeseen short and long term
absences. The impact around the possibility of reduced pupil numbers, should the trend of the last couple of
years continue. In sddition the committee discussed the need to maintain adequate levels of support for
individual pupils with additional needs and those starting school with additional needs.

Audit & Risk Committee

The Audit & Risk Commitiee is also @ sub-Committee of the Board of Trustees. lts purpose is o maintain an
oversight of the Trust's governance, risk management, internal control and value for money framework. It will
report its findings annually to the Board of Trustees and the Accounting Officer as a critical element of the Trust's
annual reporting requirements.

Attendance at meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee during the year was as follows:

Trustee . Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr J Morris 3 3
Mrs K Wilson 3 3
Mr A Mosdell 1 1
Mr J Hargreaves 2 2
Mr J O'Byrne 2 2

The key issue dealt with by the Audit & Risk Committee during the year was a continuation of the amount of risks
on the Risk Register and how this can be slimmed down without impacting the on the overail control of risks.
This meant the sub-committees would take ownership of the risk register with one person from each committee
feading back into the audit meeting.

The commitiee also reviewed the reports received from Charlotte Dennison in relation to the Trust's systems of
internal control and the actions undertaken to address any control weaknesses identified, if any, together with
monitoring the implementation of actions identified from internal control reviews undertaken in previous years

. and any recommendations identified by the external auditors’ in the previous year,if any. Work is continuing with
the aim of making the risk register & more dynamic tool.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Head teacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers io the
educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the
taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic period, and reports to the Board of Trustees where vaiue for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The Accounting
Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered value for money during the year by:

. Seeking quotes in line with purchasing procedures within the Finance Policy

. Continually looking to restructure from within the existing staff complement rather than automatically
advertising and recruiting

. Where instances have arisen that require short-term teacher cover, making use of internal skills to cover
from within e.g. using skills of teaching assistants who have qualified teacher status to cover

. Supporting a staff member on an ITT course with a view to employ should a position arise

. Using appropriate funds to install security grille doors and to replenish our pupil iPads/staff laptops

. Implementing groundworks/infrastructure to enable improved broadband across the whole of the school
site

. Ensuring that training and development opportunities impact upon the majority of staff, by availing of both
face-to-face and virtual CPD. To ensure best value, using the skills of current staff to deliver training and
development

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk o a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiantly,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in ptace in Boughton Primary School
Academy Trust for the period from 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle rigk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period from 1 September 2024 to 31 August
2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regufarly
reviewed by the Board of Trustees. '

The risk and control framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information and

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and regular financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Trusiees;

. regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines: and

. identification and management of risks.
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The risk and control framework {(continued)

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Charlotte Dennison.

Charlotie Dennison, formerly of West Northamptonshire Council, who now works for another school but
continues to work on a commissioned basis for Boughton Primary Schoal Trust. This option has been chosen
as, given the current structure of the Academy Trust, the Board of Trustees believe this provides a robust and
best value approach to providing assurance that the Academy Trust’s financial and non-financial controls and
risk management procedures are operating effectively.

The internal auditor's role includes offering advice and insight to the Board of Trustees on how to address
weaknesses in financial and non-financial controls as well as evaluating the suitability of, and level of compliance
with, financial and non-financial controls. This includes assessing whether procedures are effective and efficient,
and checking whether agreed controls and procedures have been followed. The internal auditor has undertaken
three focused reviews during the year and the scope of work included but were not fimited to:

Review of and testing of income recognition and recording systems and procedures
Review and testing of payroll systems and procedures

Review of and testing of purchasing and procurement systems and procedures
Policy checks

DfE returns completed and submitted within the deadlines set

Bank reconciliation

Control accounts

Governor reporting

The internal auditor/responsible officer provides a report to the Board of Trustees through the Audit & Risk
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial
responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the Committee outlining the areas reviewed,
key findings, recommendations and conglusions to help the Committee consider actions and assess year on
year progress.

The internal auditor has delivered their program of work during the year ended 31 August 2025 as planned and
no significant internal control weaknesses were identified from the work completed.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year ended 31 August 2025 the review has been informed by

the work of the internal auditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process, including the School Resource
Management Self-Assessment Tool,

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework; and

e the work of the external auditor.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit & Risk Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the Audit & Risk Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Board of Trustees is of the
opinion that the Academy Trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and
conirol.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 26 November 2025 and signed on their behalf

by:
Mrs K Wilson Mrs M James
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Boughton Primary School Trust, | confirm that 1 have had due regard to the framework
of authorities governing regularity, propriety and compliance, including the Trust's funding agreement with DiE,
and the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including responsibilities for estates safety and
management. | have also considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and DiE of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for

estates safety and management.

| confirm that I, and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds
by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the framework of authorities.

| confirm that no instances of material iregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have' been discovered

to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this staterment, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and DIE.

N0, Cgzaen

Mrs M James
Accounting Officer

Date: 26 November 2023
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracfice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming rescurces and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2024 to 2025;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to-ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 26 November 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs K Wilson
Chair of Governors
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST '

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Boughton Primary School Trust (the 'Academy Trust’) for the year
ended 31 August 2025 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance shest, the Statement of
cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies. The financia! reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2025 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP

2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (1SAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requiremenis that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and -we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have conciuded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties refating o events or
conditions ihat, individually or coliectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern for a petiod of &t least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BOUGHTOCN PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Qur
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audif, or
otherwise appears to be materfally misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required fo report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the Trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

" In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its enviranment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report.

We have nothing fo report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have nof received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST {CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

Our assessment focussed on key laws and regulations the Academy Trust has to comply with and areas of the
financial statements we assessed as being more susceptible to misstatement. These key laws and regulations
included but were not limited to compliance with the Companies Act 2008, Charities Act 2011, the Academy
Trust Handbook 2024, the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025, taxation legistation, data protection,
anti-bribery and employment legislation.

We are not responsible for preventing irregularities, including fraud. Our approach to detecting irregularities,
inciuding fraud, included, but was not limited to, the following:

« obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Academy Trust and how
the Academy Trust is complying with that framework, including agreement of financial statement disclosures
to underlying documentation and other evidence;

« obtaining an understanding of the Academy Trust's control environment and how the Academy Trust has
applied relevant controi procedures, through discussions with Trustees and other management and by
reviewing the reports on the internal scrutiny work commissioned by the trust in relation to the year and by

performing walkthrough testing over key areas;
» obtaining an understanding of the Academy Trust's risk assessment process, including the risk of fraud,
« reviewing meeting minutes of those charged with govermnance throughout the year; and

« performing audit testing to address the risk of management override of contrals, including testing journal
entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of significant
transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for bias.

Whilst considering how our audit work addressed the detection of iregularities, we also considered the likelihood
of detection of fraud based on our approach. Irregularities arising from fraud are inherently more difficult to
detect than those arising from error.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, inciuding
those leading to a material misstatermnent in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compiiance with a jaw or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregulatities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditor's repoit.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signed by:

A Bott

EBB150CA03A04AB...
Glen Bott FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
Cooper Parry Group Limited
Statutory Auditor
Cubo Bimingham, 4th Floor
Two Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX

Date:28 November 2025
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BOUGHTON
PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15 October 2025 and further to the requirements of
the Department for Education (DfE) as included in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts 2024 to 2025, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited
assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Boughton Primary School Trust during the year 1 Sepiember
2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Boughton Primary School Trust and the Secretary of State for Education in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to
Boughton Primary School Trust and the Secretary of State for Education those matters we are required to state
in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Boughton Primary School Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Boughton Primary School Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Boughton Primary School Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust Handbook for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilitiss for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement lefter and the
requirements of the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy
Trusts. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in canying out our work which suggests that
in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 31
August 2025 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities which govern them.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BOUGHTON
PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EDUCATION {CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by DiE. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions included:

- Reviewing the internal control policies and procedures impiemented by the Academy Trust and evaluating
their design and effectiveness to understand how the Academy Trust has complied with the framework of
- authorities, including reviewing the reports on the internal scrutiny work commissioned by the Academy
Trust in relation to the year;

- Reviewing the minutes of meetings of the Trustees, relevant sub-committees and other evidence made
available to us, relevant to our consideration of regularity;

- Enquiries of the Accounting Officer, including reviewing the work undertaken by the Accounting Officer in
relation to their Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance; and

- Detailed testing of the income and expenditure of the Academy Trust based on our assessment of the
risk of material irregularity, impropristy and non-compliance. This work was integrated with our audit of the
financial statements where appropriate and included analytical review and detailed substantive testing of
transactions. : :

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

A
Ve y | M

Reporting Accountant
Cooper Parry Group Limited

Date: 28 November 2025
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guaraniee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Restricied
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 5 - 6 11 42
Other trading activities 14 - - 14 16
Bank Interest 4 8 - 10 9
Charitable activities:
Academy Trust
educational
operations - 1,078 - 1,078 1,006
Total income 23 1,084 6 1,113 1,073
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities - 7 1,105 43 1,148 1,118
Total expenditure - 1,105 43 1,148 1,118
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses) 23 (21) (37) (35) (45)
Other recognised
gains/(iosses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
pension schemes 21 - (15) - (15} (8)
Net movement in
funds 23 (36} (37) (50) (53)
Reconciliation of
funds:
Tota! funds brought
forward 157 79 1,677 1,013 1,966
Net movement in funds 23 (38) (37 (50) {53)
Total funds carried
forward ' 180 43 1,840 1,863 1,013

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 34 to 54 form part of these financial statements.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 08132405

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2025

2025 2024
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 1,640 1,671
1,640 1,671
Current asseis
Debtors 13 22 21
Cash at bank and in hand 293 289
315 310
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts due within one year 14 (92) (80)
Net current assets 223 230
Total assets less current liabilities 1,863 1,801
Net assets excluding pension asset 1,863 1,901
Defined benefit pension scheme asset 21 - 12
Total net assets 1,863 1,913
Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 15 1,640 1,677
Restricted income funds 15 43 55
Pension reserve 15 - 12
Total restricted funds 15 1,683 1,756

Unrestricted income funds 15 180 157

Total funds 1,863 1,813

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities subject to
the small companies regime.

The financial statements on pages 31 to 54 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 26
November 2025 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Mrs K Wilson

Chair of Govermnors

The notes on pages 34 to 54 form part of these financial statements.

Page 32



Docusign Envelope ID: BEE946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 17
Cash flows from investing activities 18
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19, 20

The notes on pages 34 to 54 form part of these financial statements
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1.

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, rounded to the nearest £1,000.
Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of [reland (FRS
102), Charities SORP 2019, the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by DfE, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companigs Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to confinue as a going concern. The Trustees make this agsessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence

for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to

continue as a going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recoghition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
enfitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accruad.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
1o a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in seftlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of fime spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is inciuded when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests sef out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance

Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used fowards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.8 Tangible fixed assets

1.9

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each assef on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Long-term leasehold buildings - 2% per annum
Long-term leasehold land - 1% per annum {over the life of the lease)
Furniture and equipment - 20%. per annum
Computer equipment - 33% per annum

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount oifered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liguid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.11 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.

Page 36



Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1. Accounting poficies {continued)

1,12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to setile the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1,13 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS"} and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes. '

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit methed. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined conftribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the coniributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liahility/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used fo
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the intetest income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulis. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2025. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

To the extent that there is a surplus in the Local Government Pension Scheme at the Balance Sheet date,
there is significant judgment needed in assessing whether the surplus should be recognised as a pension
asset or whether the surplus should be restricted to some level or in total. This assessment will need to
consider whether the Academy Trust, as the employer, has an unconditional right to a refund of the
surplus in the scheme and whether there is an economic accounting benefit available to the Academy
Trust as a contribution reduction, which will also include assessing whether a minimum funding
requirement for future service and/ or past service exists in the scheme. The impact of these assessments
on the extent to which the scheme surplus has been recognised as a pension asset at the Balance Sheet
date are set out in note 21.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their economic useful lives taking into account residual values
where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors.

Critical areas of judgment:
The classification of expenditure between restricted and unrestricted funds is considered a critical area of
judgement as certain expenditure can be applied to both funds. Where this is the case and the amounis in

question are considered material, the expenditure is apportioned to both funding streams on an
appropriate basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

3. Income from donations and capital grants
Restricted
Unrestricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000
Donations 5 - 5 36
Grants - 8 6 6
Total 2025 5 6 11 42
Total 2024 3 39 42
4, Funding for the academy trust's educational operations
Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2025 2025 2024
£000 £000 £000
Educational operations
DfE grants
General Annual Grant 894 894 819
Other DfE grants
Pupil premium 10 10 9
UIFSM grant 29 29 31
PE and sporis grant 18 18 18
Other DfE Group grants 57 57 56
1,008 1,008 933
Other Government grants
Special education funding 51 51 38
Other local authority grants - - 2
51 51 40
Other income from the Academy Trust's educational
operations 19 19 33
1,078 1,078 1,006
Total 2025 1,078 1,078 1,006
Total 2024 1,006 1,006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

5. Income from other trading activities
Unrestricied Total Total
funds funds funds
2025 2025 2024
£000 £000 £000
Hire of facilities 3 3 3
Departmental activities 11 11 13
Total 2025 14 14 16
Total 2024 16 16
6. Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Educational operations
Direct costs 681 43 84 808 763
Support costs 203 53 84 340 355
Total 2025 884 g6 - 168 1,148 1,118
Total 2024 811 120 187 1,118

Of the above expenditure Enil was allocated to unrestricted funds (2024: £nil), £1,105,000 (2024
£1,082,000) was allocated to restricted funds and £43,000 (2024: £36,000) to restricted fixed asset funds.

7. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Support Total Total

Direct cosis costs funds funds

2025 2025 2025 2024

£000 £000 £000 £000

Educational operations 808 340 1,148 1,118
Total 2024 763 355 1,118
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

7. Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued}

Analysis of support costs

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Educational Total Total
operations funds funds
2025 2025 2024
£000 £000 £000
Siaff costs 172 172 171
Maintenance of premises and equipmet 22 22 31
Cleaning 20 20 21
Rent and rates 5 5 11
Energy costs 12 12 17
Insurance 5 5 4
Security and transport 4 4 1
Other support costs 82 82 78
Auditors remuneration 18 18 21
Total 2025 340 340 355
Total 2024 355 355
8. Net income/(expenditure)
Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:
2025 2024
£000 £000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 43 a7
Fees paid to auditor for: '
- audit 15 13
- other services 4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025
9. Staff

a. Staff costs and employee henefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2025 2024

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 603 610
Social security costs 48 48
Pension costs 158 147
7 808 803

Agency staff costs 76 8

884 811

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2025 2024

No. No.

Teachers 11 9
Administration and support ‘ 10 12
Management 2 3
23 24

¢. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2025 2024
No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 1 -

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 - 1

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance confributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £248,124 (2024: £208,998).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

10. Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2025 2024

£000 £000

Mrs M James Remuneration 60 -65 70-75
Pension contributions paid 15-20 156-20

Mrs N Cullum Remuneration 10-15 10-156
Pension contributions paid 0-5 0-5

During the year ended 31 August 2025, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2024 - £Nil).

11. Trustees’ and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acis, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5.000,000 on any one claim and the cost for this
insurance i not separately identifiable. The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2024
Additions

At 31 August 2025
Depreciation

At 1 September 2024
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2025

Net book value

At 31 August 2025

At 31 August 2024

Debtors

Due within one year
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Long-term
leasehold Furniture and Computer
property equipment equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
1,966 67 58 2,081
6 - 7 13
1,972 67 65 2,104
333 32 56 421
33 8 2 43
366 40 58 464
1,606 27 7 1,640
1,634 35 2 1,671
2025 2024
£000 £000
2 3
20 18
22 21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

14. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2025 2024

£000 £000

Other taxation and social security 16 12
Other creditors 20 15
Accruals and deferred income 56 53
92 80

20256 2024

£000 £000

Deferred income at 1 September 2024 21 23
Resources deferred during the year 29 21
Amounts released from previous periods , 21 (23)
2% 21

Deferred income is represented by UIFSM funding received in advance which relates to activities that will
be undertaken during the year ending 31 August 2026.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST

(A company limited by quarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Statement of funds

Unrestricted funds

General Funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium

UIFSM grant

PE and sports grant

Other DIE grants

Local authority grants

Other income:

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Restricted fixed asset fund

Total Restricted funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Gains/ 31 August
2024 Income Expenditure {Losses) 2025
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
157 23 - - 180
63 884 (918) - 41

- 10 (1o - -

- 29 (29) - -
4 18 (20) - 2

- 57 (57) - -

- 51 (51} - -

- 19 (19) - -

12 6 (3) (15) -
79 1,084 (1,105) (15) 43
1,677 6 (43) - 1,840
1,758 1,090 {1,148) {15) 1,683
1,913 1,113 (1,148} (15) 1,863

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant funding must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy Trust in line
with the Trust's charitable objects and the terms and conditions of the Trust’'s funding agreement. Under
the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2025.

The Pupil premium funding must be used to support children from families on low income or children in

care.

Other restricted funds, which include other DfE grants (including Universal infant Free School Meal grants,
Teacher Pay grants and Teachers’ Pension grants), Local Authority funding, and other restricted income,
are all used in accordance with the specific restrictions of the individual grants and funding provided.

Page 46



Docusign Envelope ID: B6E946F7-E8A9-467A-A7E9-FE9AG6529196B

15.

BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Statement of funds (continued)

The Pension reserve represents the Trust's net share of the multi-employer Local Government Pension
Scheme.

Restricted fixed asset funds represent the investment in fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
and includes the value of fixed assets transferred to the Academy Trust on conversion of the Schools
within the Academy Trust and the value of fixed assets transferred from academies joining the Trust in the
current or previous years, together with any capital expenditure funded from restricted or unrestricted
funds. Unspent capital grants and capita! income are also held in this fund and their use is restricted to the
capital projects for which the grant awarded.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follbws:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure infout (Losses) 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 144 24 - (11} - 1657
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 133 819 (889) - - - 63
Pupil premium - 2] (9 - - -
UIFSM grant - o (31) - - -
PE and sports
grant ) 5 18 (19) - . - 4
Other DE grants - 56 (56) - - -
Local authority
grants - 40 (40) - - -
Other income - 33 {33) - - -
Pension reserve 21 4 (5) - (8) 12
159 1,010 {1,082) - 8) 79
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted fixed
asset fund 1,683 39 (36) 11 - 1,677
Total Restricted
funds 1,822 1,049 (1,118) 11 (8) 1,756

Total funds 1,966 1,073 {1,118) - (8) 1,913
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025
16. Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Resitricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 1,640 1,640
Current assets 180 135 - 315
Creditors due within one year - {92) - (92)
Total 180 43 1,640 1,863
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricied fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 1,671 1,671
Current assets 157 147 6 310
Creditors due within one year - (80) - (80)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - 12 - 12

Total 157 79 1,677 1,913
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee})

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

Increase in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents
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£000 £000
(35) (45)
43 37
®) (®)

3 5
(6) (4)
(1 (1
13 23
11 9
2025 2024
£000 £000
{13) (52)
6 6
0] (46)
2025 2024
£000 £000
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293 289
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September At 31 August
2024  Cash flows 2025
£000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 289 4 293
289 : 4 293

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Northamptonshire County Council. Both are
multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £17,686 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2025 (2024 - £16,751)
and are included within creditors,

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-fime teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrclment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes cohtributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited io the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised
and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The
key elements of the valuation outcome are:

. employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy) from 1 April 2024 (contribution rate to 31 March 2024 is 23.68% as sef by the 31 March 2019
valuation).

® Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated fufure contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222 200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2027.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £124,000 (2024 - £100,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(hitps:/iwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/ news/employers/201 9/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2025 was £42,000 (2024 -
£55,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £32,000 (2024 - £42,000) and employees'
contribufions totalled £10,000 (2024 - £13,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.20%
for employers and 5.50% to 12.50% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2025 2024

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.20 3.15
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/finflation 270 2.65
Discount rate for scheme liabilities , 6.05 5.00
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guaraniee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Pension commitments (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Increase in the value of reported defined benefit obligations:

0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate
0.1% increase in the Salary Increase Rate
0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI)

Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Bonds

Property
Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £39,000 (2024 - £74,000).

2025 2024
Years Years
21.3 21.0
24.4 24 4
221 21.9
259 25.9
2025 2024
£000 £000
12 14

- 26
12 14

At 31.August

At 31 August

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities
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£000 £000
459 479
238 186
128 100
26 8
851 773
2025 2024
£000 £000
(35) (47)
39 35
(33) (31)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

24. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2025 2024

£000 £000
At 1 September 651 b73
Current service cost 35 47
Interest cost 33 31
Employee contributions 10 13
Actuarial gains (137) (2)
Benefits paid (14} (11)
At 31 August 578 651

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2025 2024

£000 £000
At 1 September 663 594
Interest income 39 35
Actuarial losses (152) (10)
Employer contributions 32 42
Employee contributions 10 13
Benefits paid , (14) {(11)
At 31 August 7 578 663

Included within Actuarial losses on plan assets of £(152)k is £(163)k in respect of the restriction
determined by the asset ceiling calculations. The total value of the assets recorded under the "Share of
scheme assets" disclosure has not been decreased in respect of the asset ceiling restrictions and
represents the rolled forward fair value of the assets at 31 August 2025.

22. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debis and liabilities contracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.
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BOUGHTON PRIMARY SCHOOL TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have an interest. All fransactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the DIE of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10.
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